
       Winnebago County Board 
       Regular Adjourned Meeting 
       Thursday, May 24, 2018 
 

 

A M E N D E D   A G E N D A 
 
 
 
Call to Order ------------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
  
 
Agenda Changes--------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
 
Roll Call-------------------------------------COUNTY CLERK, TIANA J. McCALL 
 
 
 
Invocation -------------------------------------------------------------------D. TASSONI 
 
 

Awards, Presentations and/or Proclamations and Public 
Participation 

 
 

Awards -    None 
 
Presentations  -    None   

 
Proclamations                -   Honoring the RVC Softball National 
      Championship Team & Overall Athletic Program 
      Success   
               
Public Participation      -       
 
 
Minutes 
 
“May I Please Have a Motion to Approve the Minutes from April 26, 2018 
Meeting and to Layover the Minutes from the May 10, 2018 Meeting. 
 



 
Announcements & Communications-------------------TIANA J. McCALL 
 
“The Items Listed Below Were Received as Correspondence” 
Chairman Haney To Be “PLACED ON FILE”. 
 
 
1. County Clerk McCall received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission the following: 
 

A. Summary of the May 10, Public Open House Regarding Braidwood Nuclear 
Power Station 

  
2. County Clerk McCall received from Charter Communications Spectrum Television 

Letters regarding a Summary of Quarterly Franchise Fee Payment for the 
following: 

 
 a. Township of Roscoe 
 b. Township of Harlem 
 c. Township of Rockton  
 
 
3. County Clerk McCall received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency a 

Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste - Description of Project:   
Application Providing Assessment Monitoring Report for Wells G13D and G13S in 
Accordance with Condition VII.20 of Permit Modification No. 88.    

 
4.   County Clerk McCall received from the Winnebago County Treasurer, Sue Goral 

the Treasurer Bank Balances Report for April, 2018. 
 
5. County Clerk McCall received from NRR-DMPSPEm Resource Braidwood Station, 

Units 1 and 2, and Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2 - Acceptance Review and 
Resource Estimate Regarding the Axial Flux Difference Amendment Request 

 
6. County Clerk McCall received from Comcast a letter informing of an Addition of 

EPiX HD to the Comcast Channel Line-Up. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GO TO REGULAR AGENDA 



Page | 1  
 

REVISED 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD  

AGENDA 
 

Winnebago County Courthouse 
400 West State Street ~ Rockford, IL 61101 

County Board Room ~ 8th Floor 
 

Thursday, May 24, 2018 
6:00 p.m.  

 
Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

• Awards – None 
• Presentations – None 
• Proclamations – Honoring the RVC Softball National Championship Team & Overall 

Athletic Program Success 
 

Board Member Correspondence 
 
Chairman’s Report 

• 911 Consultant Study 
• Machesney Park Contract 
• Economic Development Update 

 
County Administrator’s Report 
 
Consent Agenda 

• Raffle Report  
• Bills 
 

Standing Committee Reports 
 

1. Finance Committee – Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Budget Amendment 2018-026 – Reassignment to Crime Scene Deputy to be Laid Over 
C. Ordinance Adopting a Predictable Fee Schedule for Documents to be Recorded in the 

County Recorder’s Office to be Laid Over 
 

2. Zoning Committee – Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
A. Planning and/or Zoning Requests:   

1. SU-02-18  A special use permit to allow a batch plant inclusive of an asphalt / 
concrete crushing and storage facility in the AG, Agricultural Priority District 



Page | 2  
 

for the property commonly known as 11200 N. Main Street, Rockton, IL 61072 
in Rockton Township, District 2 to be laid over 

2. Z-06-18 A Map Amendment to rezone from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District for property that is 
located on the west side of Tate Road, +/- 1800 feet north of Latham Road in 
Owen Township, District 1 to be laid over 

3. Z-05-18 A Map Amendment to rezone from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District for property that is 
commonly known as 8236 Trask Bridge Road, Rockford, IL 61101 in Burritt 
Township, District 1 to be laid over 

4. Z-07-18 A Map Amendment to rezone from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District for property that is 
located on the west side of N. Hoisington Road, +/- 1,656 feet south of Berglund 
Road in Pecatonica Township, District 1 to be laid over 

5. Resolution to Refund the Fee Charged by the County of Winnebago, Illinois for 
Map Amendment Z-04-18 

6. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Building Inspections with the 
City of Loves Park 

B. Committee Report 
 

3. Economic Development Committee – Fred Wescott, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Authorizing Participation in Abandoned Residential Property Municipal 

Relief Program Grant 
 

4. Operations & Administrative Committee – Gary Jury, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 

 
5. Public Works Committee – Dave Kelley, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 
B. (18-008) Resolution Authorizing the Award of a Bid for Cunningham Road (CH-

49/CC&P Railroad Bridge Joint Replacement (Section 17-00651-00-BR)  
Cost:  $38,450.00      C.B. District:  18 

C. (18-009) Resolution Authorizing the Obligation Retirement of Bond Payments from 
MFT Funds  
Cost: $1,450,000       C.B. District:  County Wide 

D. (18-010) Resolution Authorizing the Appropriation of MFT Funds for General Drainage 
Repairs and Improvements on the County Highway System 
(Section 18-00000-04-GM) 
Cost:  $50,000.00      C.B. District:  County Wide 

E. (18-011) Resolution Authorizing the Modification of an Agreement Between the  
County of Winnebago and Spring Creek Development Group for the Conveyance of 
Right  of Way Pursuant to the Redevelopment of the Whitehead Realty Building at the 
Corner of Perryville Road and Crimson Ridge Drive 
Reimburse WC:  $31,775.00    C.B. District: 8 & 11 



Page | 3  
 

F. (18-012) Resolution Awarding Bid for Bulk Rock Salt  
WC Cost:  $931,500 ($74.52/ton)    C.B. District:  County Wide 

G. (18-013) Resolution Awarding Bid for Roadside Mowing Along Various County 
Highways (Section 18-00000-03-GM) 
Cost:  $19,988.36      C.B. District:  County Wide 

H. (18-014) Resolution Declaring as Surplus Highway Department Vehicles and 
Equipment and Authorizing Sale 
Cost:  $ n/a      C.B. District:  County Wide 

 
6. Public Safety Committee – Dave Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Authorizing Swat Team Vests 
C. Resolution Approving Intergovernmental Agreement Between the County of 

Winnebago and the City of Rockford for Backup Police Department Call Taking 
Services 

 
Unfinished Business 
 
New Business 
 
Closed Session 
 
Adjournment    

 
Next Meeting: Thursday, June 14, 2018 





 

CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT 



 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 
REPORT 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 











 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



1 
 

2018 Fiscal Year Finance: May 24, 2018 
 Lay Over: June 14, 2018 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: June 28, 2018 
Ted Biondo, Finance Committee Chairman   
Dave Fiduccia, Public Safety Committee Chairman   

 
2018 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 and recommends 
its adoption. 

ORDINANCE 
 
 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 at its September 28, 2017 meeting; 
and,  
     

 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the following increases are hereby authorized. 

 
2018-026 Public Safety Sales Tax , Sheriff 
Reason: In order to be in compliance with the FOP Collective Bargaining Agreement.  We have a deputy that is 
assigned to Crime Scene and will be retiring on 6/29/18.  A current deputy in Patrol will be assigned to replace 
him on 5/14/18, which will allow her to train with him prior to his retirement.  Per CBA, Section 6.19, Crime 
Scene Technicians shall be paid a 3% premium added to their regular rate of pay.  The deputy retiring has 18 
years of service and replacement deputy has 2 ½ years.  The savings for the deputy retiring is $16,483 for this 
fiscal year and $95,063 for FY 19. 
Alternative: None 
Impact to fiscal year 2019 budget: Increase of $1,903 
Revenue Source: Public Safety Sales Tax 
 Acct Description Org Obj Prj  
 Regular Salaries 40116 41110  719 

Total Adjustment: $719 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

                                                                                                      Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE and PUBLIC SAFETY 
COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

DAVE FIDUCCIA, 
PUBLIC SAFETY CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVE FIDUCCIA, 
PUBLIC SAFETY CHAIRMAN 

 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 

FRED WESCOTT 
 
 

 FRED WESCOTT 
 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 

DAN FELLARS 
 
 

 DAN FELLARS 
 

 
 



3 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 







1  

Sponsored by:  Ted Biondo     COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
       May 24, 2018 

        
ORDINANCE 

 of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

 
2018 CO 

_________________________________________________________________ 
 

ORDINANCE ADOPTING A PREDICTABLE FEE SCHEDULE  
FOR DOCUMENTS TO BE RECORDED IN THE  

COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3-5018.1 of the Illinois Counties Code, 55 ILCS 5/3-
5018.1, on or before January 1, 2019, the County of Winnebago is required to adopt and 
implement a predictable fee schedule for recording standard documents; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County's predictable fee schedule cannot be based on the individual 
attributes of the documents, such as page count; number, length, or type of legal descriptions; 
number of tax identification or other parcel identifying code numbers; number of common 
addresses; or number of references contained as to other recorded documents or document 
numbers; and 
 

WHEREAS, the fees in the predictable fee schedule must be inclusive of all county and 
State fees that the County of Winnebago is required to or has elected to impose, including, but 
not limited to, GIS fees, automation fees, document storage fees, and the Rental Housing 
Support Program State surcharge; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago conducted a cost study in 2014 pursuant to 
Section 3-5018 of the Counties Code, 55 ILCS 5/3-5018, which was based on expenditures 
during the 2013 fiscal year, in which the County determined that the cost of providing services 
in the County Recorder's Office was not covered by the fees being charged at the time; and 
 

WHEREAS, based on the cost study, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2015 
CO 002, which increased the fee for recording documents in the Recorder's Office from $35.75 
to $45.00, effective March 1, 2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County Recorder's Office has determined, based upon  an analysis of 
three years of recording data since March 1, 2015, that the average document recording fee for 
standard documents for that time period has been $45.00; and 



2  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago desires to adopt a predictable fee schedule that 

will set forth fees that will be imposed for recording both standard and nonstandard documents 
with the County Recorder's Office, as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County Recorder's Office has posted notice of this Ordinance, as 
required in Section 3-5018.1 of the Counties Code, at least two weeks prior, but not more than 
four weeks prior, to the public meeting at which this Ordinance will be considered by the 
County Board. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Predictable Fee Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby 
approved and adopted. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the County Recorder's Office is directed to 
implement the Predictable Fee Schedule as hereinabove approved in the manner prescribed by 
statute. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
August 1, 2018, or 60 days after this Ordinance is adopted, whichever is later. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed 
to prepare and deliver a copy of this Ordinance to the Winnebago County Recorder and the 
Winnebago County Auditor. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 



3  

 

AGREE DISAGREE 
 
 

Ted Biondo, Chairman Ted Biondo, Chairman 
 
 

Gary Jury Gary Jury 
 
 

Joe Hoffman Joe Hoffman 
 
 

Burt Gerl Burt Gerl 
 
 

Dave Boomer Dave Boomer 
 
 

Steve Schultz Steve Schultz 
 
 

Jaime Salgado Jaime Salgado 
 
 

Keith McDonald Keith McDonald 
 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the 
 

County of Winnebago, Illinois, this    
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attested by: 
 
 
 

Tiana J. McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

day of   , 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 

Frank Haney 
Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 

Nancy L. McPherson 
Recorder of Deeds 

404 Elm Street, 
Rockford, Illinois 61101 

815-319-4325 
nmcpherson@co.winnebago.il.us 

 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY PREDICTABLE FEE SCHEDULE 

 
EFFECTIVE AUGUST 1, 2018 

55 ILCS 5/3-5018.1 
 

PRESENT AND ACCEPT ONLY ORIGINALS OR CERTIFIED COPIES FOR RECORDING 
 

STANDARD DOCUMENTS (any document other than nonstandard) . .... ... .... .... $45.00 
 

NONSTANDARD DOCUMENTS 
Federal Tax Liens (additional names $1.00)................................................. $12.25 
Uniform Commercial Code: Financing Statement .. .. ... .. ... .. .. ..... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .....$38.00 

Termination .. ...... .. ... ... .. ..... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... .. ..... ... .. .$18.00 
UCC search per debtor name-note party requesting 
must provide form.......................................... ..... $18.00 

PLATS-Mylar and 4 copies.. .. .. ... ... .... .. .... .. ... . ... .. .... ...... ... .. ......  ..........   .. .. . . ..$83.00 
Documents referencing 6 or more tax Parcel Identification Numbers.. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. .$57.00 
Documents referencing 6 or more recorded document umbers....................... $57.00 
Documents not conforming as in paragraphs 1 through 5 below.... .. .... ... .. .. ... ....$57.00 

1. The document shall consist of one or more individual sheets measuring 
8.5 inches by 11 inches, not permanently bound and not a continuous 
form. Graphic displays accompanying a document to be recorded that 
measure up to 11 inches by 17 inches shall be recorded without 
charging an additional fee. 

2. The document shall be legibly printed in black ink, by hand, type or computer. 
Signatures and dates may be In contrasting colors if they will reproduce 
clearly. 

3. The document shall be on white paper of not less than 20 pound weight and 
shall have a clean margin of at least one-half inch on the top, the bottom, and each side. 
Margins may be used for non-essential notations that will not affect the validity of the 
document, including but not limited to form number, page numbers and customers 
notations. 

4. The first page of the document shall contain a blank space, measuring at least 3 
inches by 5 inches, from the upper right hand corner. 

5. The document shall not have an attachment stapled or otherwise affixed to 
any page. Pages may be staples together). 

 
 

VETERANS DISCHARGE (includes 1 certified copy)... .. .. ... .. ....... .. .... ..NO CHARGE 
 

_         J    A, 

li 

ii _ 
EXHIBIT 

mailto:nmcpherson@co.winnebago.il.us


 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
May 24, 2018 

 
A. PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE LAID OVER:  

1. SU-02-18 A special use permit to allow a batch plant inclusive of an asphalt/concrete 
crushing and storage facility in the AG, Agricultural Priority District, requested by 
Northern Illinois Service Co., applicant, represented by Attorney James A. Rodriguez, for 
property commonly known as 11200 N. Main Street, Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton 
Township. 

PIN(s): 03-35-200-016 and Part of PINS: 03-35-200-015  
& 03-35-200-017 C.B. District: 2 

Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: N/A 
 ZBA RECOMMENDS: APPROVAL WITH ZBA CONDITIONS (6-1) 
 ZC RECOMMENDS: MOTION TO APPROVE WITH ZC CONDITIONS 

FAILED (1-6) 
 
2. Z-06-18 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 21.84 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 

District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District, requested by Borrego Solar 
Systems, Inc., lessee of site, whom is represented by Michael Klingl, Project Manager, for 
property that is located on the west side of Tate Road, +/- 1800 feet north of  Latham Road 
in Owen Township. 
PIN(s): Part of PIN: 07-18-400-002 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES 

 ZBA RECOMMENDS: DENIAL (2-4) 
 ZC RECOMMENDS: TBD 

 
3. Z-05-18 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 15.09 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 

District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District, requested by Community Power 
Group, LLC, lessee of site, whom is represented by Michael Borkowski, Project Manager, 
for property that is commonly known as 8236 Trask Bridge Road, Rockford, IL 61101 in 
Burritt Township. 
PIN(s): Part of PIN: 10-14-300-010 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES 

 ZBA RECOMMENDS: APPROVAL (6-0) 
 ZC RECOMMENDS: TBD 

 

4. Z-07-18 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 29.75 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District requested by Conger Solar, LLC, 
lessee of site, which is managed by Cypress Creek Renewables Development, LLC and 
whom is represented by David N. Tanner, Attorney, for property that is located on the west 
side of N. Hoisington Road, +/- 1,656 feet south of Berglund Road in Pecatonica 
Township. 
PIN(s): Part of PIN: 09-35-400-004 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES 

 ZBA RECOMMENDS: APPROVAL (4-1-1) 
 ZC RECOMMENDS: TBD 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
May 24, 2018 

 
   TO BE VOTED ON:   
 

5. RESOLUTION TO REFUND THE FEE CHARGED BY THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
FOR MAP AMENDMENT Z-04-18 
ZC Recommends:  APPROVAL (7-0) 

 
6. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD TO EXECUTE AN 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR BUILDING INSPECTIONS WITH THE 
CITY OF LOVES PARK 
ZC Recommends:  APPROVAL (7-0) 

 
 

B.   COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not  
       intended as a public notice): 

  
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting 

is scheduled for Wednesday, June 13, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the County 
Administration Building. The following items are currently on the agenda: 

 
1. Z-08-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 3.19 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the 

RA, Rural Agricultural Residential District (a sub-district of the RA district) for property located on the 
west side of Will Road, approximately one quarter of a mile north of Yale Bridge Road in Shirland 
Township, District 2. 

2. Z-09-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 0.68 acres from the IG, General Industrial Priority District to 
the CG, General Commercial District for property that is commonly known as 816 Dearborn Ave., South 
Beloit, IL 61080 in Roscoe Township, District 4. 

3. Z-10-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 26.41 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the 
A2, Agricultural-Related Business District for property that is generally located on the southeast corner 
of N. Hoisington Road and Berglund Road intersection in Pecatonica Township, District 1. 

4. Z-11-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 39.98 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the 
A2, Agricultural-Related Business District for property that is commonly known as 14248 Saunders 
Road in Pecatonica Township, District 1. 

5. Z-12-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 33.06 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the 
A2, Agricultural-Related Business District for property that is generally located at the east end of Green 
Road on the south side in Pecatonica Township, District 1. 

   
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 

tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, June 27, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the County 
Administration Building. 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



SPONSORED BY:  FRED WESCOTT 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

2018CR_______ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN  
ABANDONED RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY  
MUNICIPAL RELIEF PROGRAM GRANT 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, through the Winnebago County Health 

Department, has applied for and been awarded funds ($75,000.00) for the Abandoned 
Residential Property Municipal Relief Program Grant through the Illinois Housing 
Development Authority (hereinafter the “Grant”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the Grant is to assist with the maintenance and 

demolition of abandoned residential properties within the County of Winnebago; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago has determined that 

participation by the County in the Grant is in the best interests of the County and will 
promote economic development and public safety within the County by the maintenance 
and demolition of abandoned properties in the County; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County Board has further determined that administration of the 

Grant should be managed by the Winnebago County Health Department as the Health 
Department is in the best position to identify properties in need of maintenance and/or 
demolition and has the authority to do so under the Property Maintenance Code as 
adopted by the County; and  

 
WHEREAS, participation in the Grant will require the execution of certain 

documents by the County and the Winnebago County Health Department Administrator 
should be authorized to execute said documents on behalf of the County. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED as follows: 
 
1. That the County of Winnebago participate in the Abandoned Residential 

Property Municipal Relief Program Grant under the terms and conditions set 
forth by the Illinois Housing Development Authority and the Authority’s 
Program Rules. 
 



2. That the Winnebago County Health Department Administrator on behalf of 
the County of Winnebago is hereby authorized to execute such documents as 
may be necessary for the County to participate in the Grant. 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 
 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Fred Wescott, Chairman    Fred Wescott, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Jean Crosby      Jean Crosby  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia      Dave Fiduccia 
    
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
L.C. Wilson      L.C. Wilson 
 

 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tiana J. McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 





















































































 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 COMMITTEE 



 
  

 

Purchasing Department 
404 Elm Street • Room 202 • Rockford, IL 61101  Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date:   May 16, 2018 
To:   Public Safety Committee 
Prepared by:   Purchasing Department 
Subject:            SWAT Team Vests for Sheriff’s Department  
 

County Code:    Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 
 
Background: 
The Sheriff’s SWAT Team has expired body armor.  They are in need of 24 sets of new body 
armor (vests and accessories).  In place of bidding this,  a governmental joint purchasing 
agreement pursuant to the Illinois Governmental Joint Purchasing Act (30 ILCS 525/0.01 
et seq.) was ut i l i zed.    
 
The equipment manufacturer, KDH, is under a federal General Services Administration 
Contract # GS-07F-0249T for Total Solution for Law Enforcement.  The seller of the equipment, 
Uniform Den East in on the Illinois State Master Contract #4018491 for body armor 
equipment. 
 
Uniform Den East is a small local business located in Loves Park.  The vendor will provide 
fitting and measurement services as part of their contract. 
 
Recommendation:  
Therefore, it is recommended by Chief Deputy Mike Schultz that the award go to Uniform 
Den East for the 24 new SWAT Team armor plate equipment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County Board Meeting 
May 24, 2018 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Dave Fiduccia 
Submitted by:   Public Safety Committee 

 
2018 CR 

 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SWAT TEAM VESTS 
 

 

 
WHEREAS, Section 2-355 of the Winnebago County Code sets forth the guidelines for the 

County’s participation in governmental joint purchasing agreements, and pursuant to the Illinois 
Governmental Joint Purchasing Act (30 ILCS 525/0.01 et seq.) the County has reviewed the 
General Services Administration Contract GS-07F-0249T for Total Solution for Law Enforcement and the 
Illinois State Master Contract #4018491 for body armor; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Sheriff’s Department is in need of 24 SWAT Team Vests; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee of the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the proposal received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

  
UNIFORM DEN EAST 
5803 NORTH 2ND STREET 
LOVES PARK, IL 61111 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee has determined that the funding for the 
aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

24000 46440 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, a Purchase Order with Uniform Den East, 5803 North 2nd Street, Loves Park, IL 61111 not 
to exceed FIFTY-THREE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED AND TWENTY NINE DOLLARS ($53,229.00). 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any contract entered into by the County Board Chairman 
pursuant to the authority granted by this Resolution shall contain substantially the same terms as 
those contained in the quote attached. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Deputy Chief,  Finance Director, Director 
of Purchasing and County Auditor. 



 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
        PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 
 

DAN FELLARS 
 
 

 DAN FELLARS 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
TIANA J. MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

     

 

 
    
    
   5803 N 2nd Street 

     Loves Park, IL 61111 
 

DATE May 11, 2018 
  Phone: 815.654.7919 CUSTOMER ID 

   Fax: 815.654.7953 EXPIRATION DATE 
Dec. 31, 

2018 
   

   Chief Deputy Mike Schultz / Ann Johns - Director of Purchasing 
  

 
Winnebago County Sheriff Office 

   
      
      
      
   

SALESPERSON JOB SHIPPING  
METHOD 

SHIPPING  
TERMS 

DELIVERY  
DATE 

PAYMENT  
TERMS DUE DATE 

 Chuck Corso   UPS F.O.B. - Dest.   Net 45    

  QTY ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT LINE TOTAL 

 
24 FEARLESS KDH FEARLESS Plate 

Carrier $1,440.00   $34,560.00  
    w/ LTST-102-IIIA Package        

24 Arms Arms $228.56   $5,485.44  
24 Throat Throat $58.86   $1,412.64  
24 Collar Collar $91.99   $2,207.76  
24 Cummberbund Cummerbund $205.50   $4,932.00  
24 Groin  Groin $164.05   $3,937.20  
24 ID Patch Set Sheriff IDs $28.90   $693.60  
            

     Package Total $2,217.86     
             
             
  

  
 

         
  

 

     
SUBTOTAL $53,228.64 

 

     
SALES TAX   

 

     
TOTAL $53,228.64 

       

  
  

  

QUOTE 
 

UNIFORM DEN EAST 

KDH has a GSA body armor contract in Wisconsi 
Uniform Den holds the concealable body armor contract  for the State of 
Illinois #401849 



Sponsored by:  Dave Fiduccia, Chairman   
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

May 24, 2018 
 

R E S O L U T I O N  
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Submitted by:  Public Safety Committee 

2018 CR 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO AND THE  

CITY OF ROCKFORD FOR BACKUP POLICE DEPARTMENT CALL 
TAKING SERVICES 

 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois ( "County"), and the City of Rockford 
Illinois (“City”) are units of local government as defined in the Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.); and 

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10, of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 and the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act authorize units of local government to contract or otherwise 
associate among themselves to obtain or share services; to exercise, combine, or transfer any power 
or function, in any manner not prohibited by law; and to use their credit, revenues, and other 
reserves to pay costs and to service debt related to intergovernmental activities; and 

WHEREAS, during a critical shortage in staffing at the County’s 911 Center, the County 
agrees to temporarily obtain the services of the City’s 911 Center for twenty four (24) hour 
emergency 911 telephone answering service; and 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to temporarily provide twenty four (24) hour emergency 
911 telephone answering service upon the occurrence of a shortage in staffing at the County’s 911 
Center; and   

  WHEREAS, it would be in the best interests of the citizens of Winnebago County, Illinois 
for the County to use said City’s 911 Center for emergency call taking when there are critical 
staffing shortages at the County’s 911 Center. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that Frank Haney, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and 
directed to enter an intergovernmental agreement for backup police department call taking services 
with the City of Rockford, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the intergovernmental agreement entered into by 
Frank Haney pursuant to the authority granted in this Resolution shall contain substantially the 
same terms as the intergovernmental agreement which is attached to this Resolution and marked 
as “Exhibit A”. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
and directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
Sheriff, Winnebago County Auditor, Treasurer and County Administrator. 

Respectfully submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE and PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 AGREE      DISAGREE 

 

________________________________  __________________________________ 
Ted Biondo, Finance Chairman            Ted Biondo, Finance Chairman 

 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
Gary Jury                      Gary Jury  

 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 

 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Burt Gerl            Burt Gerl 

 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Dave Boomer       Dave Boomer 

 
________________________________         __________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 

 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado      Jaime Salgado 
 
  
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 



 AGREE      DISAGREE 

 

________________________________  __________________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia, Public Safety Chairman          Dave Fiduccia, Public Safety Chairman 

 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
Aaron Booker                      Aaron Booker  

 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 

 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Fred Wescott      Fred Wescott 

 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Eli Nicolosi      Eli Nicolosi 

 
________________________________         __________________________________ 
Dan Fellars      Dan Fellars 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  

Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _____________, 2018. 

 

                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Frank Haney, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 

 

______________________________   
Tiana McCall, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 


















	Amended Agenda
	Revised Agenda
	Proclamation
	Chairman's Report
	Administrator's Report
	Consent Agenda
	Finance Committee
	2018-026 Crime Scene Technician
	Request for Budget Amendment
	Ordinance Adopting a Predictable Fee Schedule
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development Committee
	Res Authorizing Abandoned Property Grant
	Public Works Committee
	18-008 Res Athorizing Award of a Bid for Cunningham Rd.
	18-009 Res Authorizing Obligation Retirement of Bond Payments
	18-010 Res Authorizing Appropriation of MFT Funds
	18-011 Modification #1 to Agreement Dated 6/13/13
	18-012 Res Awarding Bid for Bulk Rock Salt
	18-013 Res Authorizing the Award of a Bid for Roadside Mowing
	18-014 Res Declaring as Surplus Hwy Dept Vehicles & Equip
	Public Safety Committee
	Executive Summary - SWAT Team Vests
	Res Authorizing SWAT Team Vests
	Res Approving IGA for Backup Police Dept. Call Taking Services
	IGA



